Last date for filling Application Form online: 15.12.2012 Last date for receipt of Confirmation Page at JEE (Main) Secretariat: 26.12.2012 (By Registered/Speed post only)

Joint Entrance Examination (Main) - 2013

INFORMATION BULLETIN



JEE (Main) Secretariat Central Board of Secondary Education PS-1-2, Institutional Area, I.P.Extn. Patparganj, Delhi-110 092.

DATE OF EXAMINATION April 7, 2013 (Pen & Paper Based Examination) During April 8 - 25, 2013 (Computer Based Examination)

IMPORTANT INSTRUCTIONS

- 1. Candidates of JEE (Main) 2013 have to apply online only.
- 2. Please ensure that you are filling genuine application form available online at JEE (Main) website (<u>www.jeemain.nic.in</u>).
- 3. Please ensure your eligibility as per the criteria laid down for JEE (Main) as well as JEE (Advanced).
- 4. The fee (in Indian Rupees) for JEE (Main)-2013 is as follows:

Paper(s) Appearing	Pen Exami	and f ination	Paper	Based	Comp Exami	outer nation (I	Paper-1	Based only)
	(Gener	al/OBC)	(SC/ST	/PwD)	(Gener	al/OBC)	(SC/ST/	'PwD)
JEE (Main) Paper-1 or JEE (Main) Paper-2 only	800 400	(Boys) (Girls)	400 400	(Boys) (Girls)	500 250	(Boys) (Girls)	250 250	(Boys) (Girls)
Both JEE (Main) Paper-1 and JEE (Main) Paper-2	1400 700	(Boys) (Girls)	700 700	(Boys) (Girls)	1100 550	(Boys) (Girls)	550 550	(Boys) (Girls)
FOR EXAMINA	FOR EXAMINATION CENTRE OPTED IN FOREIGN COUNTRY							
JEE (Main) Paper-1 or JEE (Main) Paper-2 only	2000 1000	(Boys) (Girls)	1000 1000	(Boys) (Girls)	2000 1000	(Boys) (Girls)	1000 1000	(Boys) (Girls)
Both JEE (Main) Paper-1 and JEE (Main) Paper-2	3000 1500	(Boys) (Girls)	1500 1500	(Boys) (Girls)	3000 1500	(Boys) (Girls)	1500 1500	(Boys) (Girls)

In case the examination fee is paid through credit/debit cards, the candidates will need to pay an additional processing charge of 1.20% of the examination fee plus the service tax as applicable.

Candidates who wish to appear in Paper-1 and Paper-2 both, may kindly note that Paper-2 will be conducted only in Pen and Paper based examination mode. If they opt for Paper-1 in Computer based examination mode, the Paper-1 will be held between 08.04.2013 and 25.04.2013 while Paper-2 will be held on 07.04.2013 in the cities for computer based examination during 02:00-05:00PM.

5. Candidates are allowed to submit only one application form. Multiple applications of a candidate are liable to be rejected.

- 6. The name in the application form must be the same as registered in class XIIth/ qualifying Examination.
- 7. The fee may be submitted either by credit/debit card or through Demand Draft. In case of Demand Draft, the same may be made in favour of **Secretary, CBSE, payable at Delhi**.
- 8. In case the payment is made through Demand Draft, please mention your computer generated application no. and name on the reverse side of Demand Draft.
- 9. The computer generated Confirmation Page with photograph pasted, address written and signed by the candidate and his/her parent must reach the JEE (Main) office on or before 26th December 2012. The completed Confirmation Page must be sent only by registered/speed post to the Executive Director, JEE (Main) - 2013 at the given below address:

Executive Director JEE (Main) Secretariat Central Board of Secondary Education, PS-1-2, Institutional Area, I.P.Extn. Patparganj, Delhi-110 092.

- 10. After submission of an application no options can be changed at a later stage.
- 11. All correspondence related to JEE (Main) 2013 should be addressed to the Executive Director, JEE (Main).
- 12. The application no. printed on the computer generated Confirmation Page must be mentioned in all such correspondences. It is therefore essential to note down the application number printed on the Confirmation Page.
- 13. Candidates may check the status of their application on JEE (Main) 2013 website by giving the application number and date of birth.
- 14. Application fee once paid is non-refundable.
- 15. The Honb'le High Court of Delhi at New Delhi alone will have the jurisdiction to settle and decide all matters and disputes related to JEE (Main) 2013 as Joint Apex Board located at CBSE Delhi is organising the JEE (Main) 2013 examination.
- 16. The offer of admission is subject to verification of original certificates/ documents at the time of admission. If any candidate is found ineligible

at a later date even after admission to an Institute, his/her admission will be cancelled.

- 17. If a candidate expects the result of Class 12th/Other qualifying examination to be declared **after 30th June 2013** by the examining body, the candidate is advised not to attempt JEE (Main) 2013. Candidates whose result of Class 12th /Other qualifying examination is not available by 30th June 2013 will not be considered for All India Ranking of JEE (Main) 2013.
- 18. The decision of the Joint Apex Board of JEE (Main) 2013 regarding the eligibility of any applicant shall be final.
- 19.For any query or latest information related to JEE (Main) 2013 kindly visit JEE(Main) Website: www.jeemain.nic.in
- 20. For any query related to JEE(Advanced) kindly visit any of the following JEE(Advanced) Websites.
 - a. <u>http://jeeadv.iitb.ac.in</u>
 - b. <u>http://jeeadv.iitd.ac.in</u>
 - c. <u>http://jeeadv.iitg.ac.in</u>
 - d. http://jeeadv.iitk.ac.in
 - e. <u>http://jeeadv.iitkgp.ac.in</u>
 - f. http://jeeadv.iitm.ac.in
 - g. <u>http://jeeadv.iitr.ac.in</u>

CONTENTS

- 1. INTRODUCTION AND SCHEME OF EXAMINATION
- 2. ABOUT JEE (Main) 2013
 - 2.1. Mode of Examination
 - 2.2. Type of Examination
 - 2.3. Schedule of Examination
 - 2.4. Choice of Language of Question Papers
 - 2.5. Rules for Amanuenses and Appointment of Amanuenses
 - 2.6. Cities/Towns of JEE(Main) 2013 Examination Centres
 - 2.7. Request for Change of Examination City/Town
 - 2.8. Use of Calculator and Communication Aids
 - 2.9. Eligibility for appearing in JEE (Main) 2013

2.9.1 Date of Birth

2.9.2 Year of Passing Qualifying Examination (QE)

2.9.3 Number of Attempts

2.10.Score and Result for JEE (Main) - 2013

- 3. ADMISSION TO NITS, IIITS, CFTIS, SFIS, STATE ENGINEERING COLLEGES FOR PARTICIPATING STATES AND OTHER PARTICIPATING INSTITUTIONS
 - 3.1. Eligibility for Admission to NITs, IIITs and Other Institutions participating through Central Counselling Board
 - 3.2. Eligibility for Admission to Other Institutions
 - 3.3. Reservation of seats
 - 3.4. Counselling and Admission Procedure
- 4. ELIGIBILITY CRITERIA FOR APPEARING IN JEE (Advanced) 2013*
- 5. APPLICATION PROCEDURE FOR JEE (Main) AND JEE (Advanced) 2013
 - 5.1. Applying Online and Submission of Application
 - 5.2. Online Application Format and Instructions for Applying Online
 - 5.3. Additional Information for Candidates for JEE (Advanced) 2013
 - 5.4. Check-List of Items to be Sent to JEE (Main) Secretariat
 - 5.5. Where and How to Send the Confirmation Page
 - 5.6. Last Date for Receipt of the Confirmation Page
 - 5.7. Proof of Having Sent the Confirmation Page
- 6. ADMIT CARD FOR JEE (Main) 2013

- 7. COMPUTER BASED EXAMINATION FOR PAPER-1 OF JEE (Main) 2013
 - 7.1. Guidelines to Candidates
 - 7.2. Instructions for Computer Based Examination

8. PEN AND PAPER BASED EXAMINATION FOR PAPER-1 AND PAPER-2 OF JEE (Main) – 2013

- 8.1. Guidelines to Candidates
- 8.2. Instructions for Pen and Paper Based Examination
- 9. CODE OF CONDUCT FOR CANDIDATES DURING JEE (Main) 2013

LIST OF APPENDICES

- APPENDIX 1 SYLLABUS FOR JEE (Main) 2013
- APPENDIX 2 LIST OF EXAMINATION CITIES FOR JEE (Main) 2013
 - a) Pen and Paper Based Examination
 - b) Computer Based Examination
- APPENDIX 3 EXAMINATION CITIES FOR JEE (Advanced) 2013
- APPENDIX 4 LIST OF QUALIFYING EXAMINATIONS
- APPENDIX 5 STATE CODE OF ELIGIBILITY
- APPENDIX 6 TENTATIVE LIST OF PARTICIPATING INSTITUTIONS IN CCB COUNSELLING
- APPENDIX 7 BOARDS OF SCHOOL EDUCATION
- APPENDIX 8 LIST OF FACILITATION CENTRES FOR FILLING ONLINE FORM
- APPENDIX 9 INSTRUCTIONS FOR USE OF TEST BOOKLET AND ANSWER SHEET (PEN AND PAPER MODE)
- APPENDIX 10 TIME SCHEDULE FOR JEE (Main) 2013

1. INTRODUCTION AND SCHEME OF EXAMINATION

Admission criteria to Undergraduate Engineering Programs at NITs, IIITs, Other centrally funded Technical Institutions, Institutions funded by several participating State Governments, and several other Institutions shall include the performance in the class 12/other Qualifying Examination and in the Joint Entrance Examination, JEE (Main). The Paper-1 of JEE (Main) will also be an eligibility test for the JEE (Advanced), which the candidate has to take if he/she is aspiring for admission to the undergraduate programmes offered by the IITs.

2. ABOUT JEE (Main) – 2013

2.1. Mode of Examination

The Paper-1 (described below) of JEE (Main) will be conducted in two separate modes i.e. Offline (Pen and Paper Based Examination) mode and Online (Computer Based Examination) mode. The Paper-2 of JEE (Main) will be conducted only in Pen and Paper based examination mode. A candidate will opt for either Pen and Paper Based or Computer Based examination modes for Paper-1 only.

2.2. Type of Examination

JEE (Main) – 2013 shall have two papers, Paper-1 and Paper-2. Candidates may take Paper-1, or Paper-2, or both as per the course(s) they are seeking admission to.

Subject combination for each paper, type of questions in each paper and mode of examination available is given in the table below.

	SUBJECTS	TYPE OF QUESTIONS	MODE OF EXAM
Paper 1	Physics, Chemistry & Mathematics	Objective type with equal weightage to Physics, Chemistry & Mathematics	based OR
Paper 2	Mathematics – Part I Aptitude Test – Part II & Drawing Test – Part III	Objective type Objective type Questions to test drawing aptitude	Only Pen and Paper based

Requirement of papers for different courses is given in the table below.

COURSE	PAPERS
B.ARCH/B. PLANNING(At Institutions other than IITs)	Paper-2
All other undergraduate courses	Paper-1

2.3. Schedule of Examination

A. Offline examination (Pen and Paper Based Examination) for Paper 1 and Paper 2

Date of Examination	Paper	Subjects	Timings	Duration
07.04.2013	Paper 1	Physics, Chemistry & Mathematics	0930-1230 Hours(IST)	3 Hours
07.04.2013	Paper 2	Mathematics – Part I Aptitude Test – Part II & Drawing Test – Part III	1400-1700 Hours(IST)	3 Hours

B. Online examination (Computer Based Examination) for Paper 1 Only

Dates of Examination*	Paper	Subjects	Timings	Duration
During 08.04.2013 and 25.04.2013	Paper 1	Physics, Chemistry & Mathematics	1 st shift 0900-1200 Hours (IST) 2 nd shift (*) 1400-1700 Hours (IST) *If required	3 Hours

*The exact slots/dates for computer based examination shall be displayed on the website by 1st February 2013. The candidates will be required to make their slot/date selection through online mode during 1st February 2013 – 15th February 2013. A candidate who opts for computer based examination and does not make this selection, for whatever reasons, shall be randomly assigned a slot based on the availability.

2.4. Choice of Language of Question Papers

A candidate can opt for question papers either in English or in Hindi. Those candidates who have opted for centres in the state of Gujarat can also opt for question paper in Gujarati medium. The option of question paper

language should be exercised while filling up the Application Form and it cannot be changed at a later stage.

2.5. Rules for Amanuenses and Appointment of Amanuenses

Provision has been made to provide amanuenses to the blind candidates. Candidates in need of amanuenses must place such requirements in their application form at appropriate place and must contact Executive Director, JEE (Main) in writing at the postal address given in the brochure at least one month before the examination along with medical certificate issued by a competent authority. Amanuenses will be provided only when approved by the Executive Director, JEE (Main) in writing. Candidates will not be permitted to bring their own amanuenses. Only in approved cases, amanuenses will be provided by the Centre Superintendent who will appoint unrelated and unknown class XI students of Commerce/Humanities without Mathematics as amanuenses. One hour extra time will also be allowed to such candidates.

2.6. Cities/Towns of JEE(Main) - 2013 Examination Centres

JEE (Main) - 2013 will be conducted in major cities and towns of India as well as abroad. The lists of cities are given in Appendix-2. While applying, candidates must select four centre cities if opting for Pen and Paper based examination and only one centre city if opting for Computer Based Examination.

Efforts will be made to allot candidates' city of choices opted for in the application. However, in some exceptional circumstances, a different city of nearby area may be allotted.

2.7. Request for Change of Examination City/Town

Requests for a change of centre will not be entertained. In this regard, the decision of the Executive Director of JEE (Main) will be final.

2.8. Use of Calculator and Communication Aids

Use of electronic devices like mobile phone, calculator etc. is **NOT PERMITTED** in JEE (Main) - 2013. Materials like log table, book, notebook, etc. should NOT be brought into the examination hall.

2.9. Eligibility for appearing in JEE (Main) – 2013

2.9.1 Date of Birth

Only those candidates whose date of birth falls on or after October 01, 1988 are eligible. However, in the case of Scheduled Caste (SC), Scheduled Tribe (ST) and Persons with Disabilities (PwD) candidates, upper age limit is relaxed by 5 years, i.e. SC, ST and PwD candidates who were born on or after October 01, 1983 are eligible. Date of birth as recorded in the Secondary Education Board/University certificate will only be considered.

2.9.2 Year of Passing Qualifying Examination (QE)

Only those candidates who have passed their Class 12th Exam or any other qualifying examination in 2011 or 2012; or those who are appearing in their Class 12th Exam or any other qualifying examination in 2013 are eligible to appear in JEE (Main) - 2013. Candidates who passed Class 12th/Qualifying examination in 2010 or before as well as those who will appear in such examination in 2014 or later are not eligible to appear in JEE (Main)-2013. Candidates who appeared in class 12th/other Qualifying Examinations in 2010, did not pass in 2010, but passed in 2011 are also not eligible to appear in JEE (Main) 2013.

Candidates must have taken at least five subjects in class 12th/any other Qualifying examination in order to be eligible for writing JEE (Main). In the year 2013 however, the candidates who have taken four subjects are also permitted to write JEE 2013 as an exception.

2.9.3 Number of Attempts

The number of attempts which a candidate can avail at JEE (Main) shall be limited to 03 (three).

CANDIDATES ARE ALSO ADVISED TO NOTE THE ELIGIBILITY FOR APPEARING IN JEE (ADVANCED) – 2013 AS WELL AS ELIGIBILITY FOR ADMISSION TO VARIOUS INSTITUTES. BY BEING ELIGIBLE TO WRITE JEE (Main) AND BY OBTAINING AN ALL INDIA RANK IN JEE (Main), A CANDIDATE DOES NOT AUTOMATICALLY BECOME ELIGIBLE FOR ADMISSION.

2.10. Score and Result for JEE (Main) - 2013

 The score of JEE (Main) – 2013 for all candidates will be declared by 7th May 2013. This score shall comprise of the actual marks obtained in JEE (Main) – 2013 along with the status of those who qualify for appearing in JEE (Advanced) – 2013 provided other conditions of eligibility are met.

- II. Separately, on the basis of score in JEE (Main) and normalised score in Class 12th or other qualifying exam (60% & 40% weightage respectively), separate rank lists will be prepared for admission to B.E./B.Tech. and B.Arch/ B.Planning (in institutions other than IITs). This will be declared on or before 07.07.2013. JEE (Main) Rank Card indicating All India Rank, State Rank and Category Rank with total marks and marks in each paper will be available on website from 08.07.2013 onwards.
- III. The rank cards will be dispatched to the candidates from 12.07.2013 onwards by ordinary post. The JEE Apex Board or JEE (Main) Secretariat will not be responsible for any consequences that may arise due to the loss of rank card in transit. In case of non-receipt of the rank card within the stipulated period, candidate may apply for duplicate rank card along with the payment of Rs. 50/- (plus postal charges of Rs. 30/- for outstation candidates) through Demand Draft in favour of Secretary, CBSE, payable at Delhi/New Delhi between **01.08.2013 to 31.08.2013**. No request for issue of duplicate rank card will be entertained thereafter.
- IV. In case of a tie, i.e. when two or more candidates obtain equal marks (by giving 60% weightage to performance in JEE (Main) and 40% weightage to normalised marks in Class 12th or other qualifying examination), inter-se merit of such candidates shall be decided in the following order:

Rank list for admission to B.E/B.Tech(in institutions other than IITs)

- Resolution by marks obtained in Mathematics in JEE (Main) 2013.
 Candidate obtaining higher marks will be given better rank.
- Resolution by marks obtained in Physics in the JEE (Main) 2013. Candidate obtaining higher marks will be given better rank.
- Resolution by total normalised qualifying exam marks. Candidate obtaining higher normalised marks will be given better rank.
- Resolution by finding the ratio of positive marks and negative marks. Candidate having higher absolute value of the ratio will be given better rank.
- If the resolution is not possible after this criterion, candidates will be given the same rank.

Rank list for admission to B.Arch/B.Planning(in institutions other than IITs)

- Resolution by marks obtained in Aptitude Test in Paper-2 in JEE (Main) – 2013. Candidate obtaining higher marks will be given better rank.
- Resolution by marks obtained in Drawing Test in Paper-2 in JEE (Main) – 2013. Candidate obtaining higher marks will be given better rank.

- Resolution by total normalised qualifying exam marks. Candidates obtaining higher normalised marks will be given better rank.
- Resolution by finding the ratio of positive marks and negative marks. Candidate having higher absolute value of the ratio will be given better rank.
- If the resolution is not possible after this criterion, candidates will be given the same rank.
- V. The OMR answer sheets of all the candidates along with the responses captured will be put on JEE (Main) website for verification by the candidates.
- VI. All participating institutes that do not use the centralised counselling procedures will prepare their own ranking based on the performance in JEE(Main) and other criteria as decided by them.

3. ADMISSION TO NITS, IIITS, CFTIS, SFIS, STATE ENGINEERING COLLEGES FOR PARTICIPATING STATES AND OTHER PARTICIPATING INSTITUTIONS

3.1. Eligibility for Admission to NITs, IIITs and Other Institutions participating through Central Counselling Board

Admission to NITs, IIITs and other institutions participating though Central Counselling Board will be based on All India Rank as explained above in section 2.10 along with the criteria of subject combinations mentioned in the table below.

Subject combinations required in the qualifying examination for admission to B.E./B.Tech. and B. Arch./B. Planning Courses in NITs, IIITs, and other CFTIs shall be as under.

Course	Required Criteria based on Class 12 th / Other Qualifying Examination	
B.E/B.TECH	Subjects in Qualifying Examination: Physics, Mathematics and one of the subjects from (Chemistry, Bio-technology, Computer Science, Biology) along with 50% marks in total including all subjects	
B.ARCH/B. PLANNING	Mathematics subject along with 50% Marks in total including all subjects	

3.2. Eligibility for Admission to Other Institutions

The above mentioned policy could also be adopted by other Centrally Funded Technical Institutions (CFTIs) and participating Institutions. In case a State opts to admit students in the engineering Colleges affiliated to state Universities, the State may prepare separate rank list based on criteria decided by them.

3.3. Reservation of seats

As per Government of India rules candidates belonging to certain categories are admitted to seats reserved for them based on relaxed criteria. These categories are:

- I. Other Backward Classes (OBC) if they belong to Non Creamy Layer (NCL)
- II. Scheduled Castes (SC)
- III. Scheduled Tribes (ST)
- IV. Persons with Disability (PwD)

Benefit of reservation for admission to NITs/IIITs and CFTIs shall be given only to those classes/castes/tribes which are in the respective central list published by the Govt of India. For admission to State Engineering colleges who have opted for admission through JEE (Main)-2013, the reservation rules of that state shall apply.

3.4. Counselling and Admission Procedure

Candidates shall be offered admission based on their choices and All India Ranks of JEE (Main) through a counselling procedure to be announced later. The candidates will be able to make their choices online for branches/programmes and institutes at appropriate time.

Candidates are advised to regularly visit the JEE (Main) website http://jeemain.nic.in for further details

The verification of documents would be done at the time of counselling/admission. The purpose would be to verify different records regarding identification, age, qualifying examination, state of eligibility and category of the candidate. On failing to produce any of the authentic documents, the candidates will not be considered for admission.

SC, ST, OBC and PwD candidates will be required to produce original certificate issued by the competent authority at the time of counselling as well as at the time of admission, failing which they will not be considered for admission.

4. ELIGIBILITY CRITERIA FOR APPEARING IN JEE (Advanced) – 2013¹

The minimum academic qualification for appearing in JEE (Advanced) - 2013 is that the candidate must have passed in final examination of Class 12^{th} or other qualifying examination (Appendix – 4). Those appearing in these examinations in 2013 can also appear in JEE (Advanced) - 2013 provisionally.

All the candidates aspiring to take admission in the undergraduate programmes at IITs and ISM Dhanbad for the year 2013 will have to appear in the JEE (Main)-2013 (Paper 1). About 150000 top candidates based on the performance of JEE (Main)-2013 (Paper 1) (including all categories) will be eligible to appear in JEE (Advanced)-2013.

Admissions to IITs/ISM Dhanbad will be based only on category-wise All India Rank (AIR) in JEE (Advanced), subject to conditions as defined in JEE (Advanced) – 2013 website.

A candidate can attempt JEE (Advanced) a maximum of two times in consecutive years irrespective of whether or not he/she passed the Qualifying Examination. Those who have attempted JEE in 2011 or earlier are NOT ELIGIBLE to appear in JEE (Advanced) - 2013.

5. APPLICATION PROCEDURE FOR JEE (Main) AND JEE (Advanced) - 2013

In order to appear in JEE (Main) and/or JEE (Advanced) 2013, the candidates are required to apply only online as per procedure detailed below².

5.1. Applying Online and Submission of Application

The online submission of particulars may be made at JEE (Main) website. The candidates should supply all the required details while filling up the online form. On submission of details, a Confirmation Page with Application No. shall be generated.

Candidates are required to take printout of Confirmation Page and paste photograph, put left hand thumb impression, sign and write down the Residential Address at appropriate places provided for these purposes. The Confirmation Page then must be signed by a parent/guardian and by a gazetted officer/principal of the last institution attended. Duly completed Confirmation Page is to be sent by Registered/Speed Post to The Executive Director, JEE (Main) Secretariat, Central Board of Secondary Education, PS-1-2, Institutional Area, I.P.Extn. Patparganj, Delhi-110 092 on or before the last date as mentioned earlier. The application fee payment can be made:

¹ Please refer to JEE (Advanced) website for the latest information and section 2.10(II) of the brochure.

² Please also see section 5.3 for JEE (Advanced)

(a) by credit/debit card, or

(b) by demand draft issued by a scheduled commercial bank in favour of Secretary, CBSE, payable at Delhi.

5.2. Online Application Format and Instructions for Applying Online

The information given in the first column of the following table will be asked in the Online Application form. The instructions to fill up the form have been given in the second column.

JEE(Main) Part			
Examination Details JEE (Main) – 2013			
Applying for	JEE (Main) Paper - 1 Only JEE (Main) Paper - 2 Only JEE (Main) Paper - 1 & Paper –2 Both		
Mode of Examination	Pen and Paper Based Examination Computer Based Examination		
Choice of Examination Centre (Only one) (For Computer Based Examination)	As per list of Computer Based Examination cities (Appendix 2)		
Choices of Examination Centre (Four) (For Pen and Paper Based Examination)	As per list of Pen and Paper Based examination cities (Appendix 2)		
Question Paper Medium	English / Hindi / Gujarati/		
Personal Details			
Candidate's Name	Maximum 46 Character		
Mother's Name	Maximum 46 Character		
Father's Name	Maximum 46 Character		
State of Eligibility	State from where the candidate has passed/appearing in qualifying examination (Appendix 5)		
Category	General/SC/ST/OBC - NCL(Central List) State list OBC Candidates who are not in OBC – NCL central list must choose General. State admission boards shall verify State OBC list separately.		
Person With Disability (PwD)	Yes/ No		
If PwD, are you a Blind Candidate?	Yes/ No		
If Blind, need for amanuenses	Yes/No		

Date of Birth (DD/MM/YYYY)	
Gender	Male / Female
In case of girl candidate, Are you the only child of your parents?	Yes / No
Nationality	Indian / OCI/PIO/ Foreign – Other than OCI,PIO (Foreign candidates are not eligible for admission to NITs, IIITs, CFTIs through JEE (Main) Channel)
Place of Residence	Rural / Urban
Pin code of mailing address	
Academic Details	
Year of Passing Class 10 th or its Equivalent	2005-2011
Place of 12 th class schooling	Village / Town / City
Year of Passing or Appearing Class 12 th / Qualifying Examination	2011 / 2012 / 2013
School Board of Class 12 th / Qualifying Examination	As per list of Boards given in Appendix 7
Name of the Qualifying Examination passed/appearing	as per Appendix 4
Type of Institution of Class 12 th / Qualifying Examination	Government / Private
Percentage of Marks obtained in Class 12 th / Qualifying Examination (if passed)	As per Marks Statement
Roll Number of Class 12 th / Qualifying Examination (if allotted)	
Appearing for Improvement of Class 12 th /Qualifying Examination	Y/N
Mode of Preparation	Self Study / Individual Tuition / Coaching/ Correspondence Courses/Others
Name & Address of the School / College from where passed / appearing	
Contact Details	
Email Address	
Mobile No.	
Land line no. with STD code or any other contact no.	
Guardian Details	

Father's Qualification	Illiterate / Matriculate / Graduate / Post Graduate / Others
Father's Occupation	Agriculture/ / Business/ Medical/ Engineering /Law Practice/ Government Service/ Public Sector Service/ Private Service/ Teaching or Research/ Architecture/ Pharmacy/ Self Employment/ Others (including House wife)
Father's Annual Income	Up to 100000 /Rs. 100001 -200000 / Rs. 200001 - 300000 /Rs. 300001 -400000 / Rs. 400001 -500000 /Rs. 500001-600000 / Rs. 600001-700000 /Rs. 700001-800000 / Rs. 800001 and above
Mother's Qualification	Illiterate / Matriculate / Graduate / Post Graduate / Others
Mother's Occupation	Agriculture/ / Business/ Medical/ Engineering /Law Practice/ Government Service/ Public Sector Service/ Private Service/ Teaching or Research/ Architecture/ Pharmacy/ Self Employment/ Others (including House wife)
Mother's Annual Income	Up to 100000 /Rs. 100001 -200000 / Rs. 200001 - 300000 /Rs. 300001 -400000 / Rs. 400001 -500000 /Rs. 500001-600000 / Rs. 600001-700000 /Rs. 700001-800000 / Rs. 800001 and above
Only on the Confirmation Page	
Candidate's Photograph	To be pasted on Confirmation Page generated after filling of online form (Details about photograph is given below)
Signature	To be put on Confirmation Page generated after filling of online form
Thumb Impression	To be put on Confirmation Page generated after filling of online form
Complete Mailing address	To be written on Confirmation Page generated after filling of online form
Signature by Parent	To be put on Confirmation Page generated after filling of online form
Certificate by Gazetted Officer/Principal of the last institution attended	To be put on Confirmation Page generated after filling of online form
Declaration by the candidate	I hereby declare that all the particulars stated in this application form are true to the best of my knowledge and belief. I have read and

	understood the JEE procedures for both JEE (Main) and JEE(Advanced) – 2013. I shall abide by the terms and conditions thereon.
Interested in JEE(Advanced) Yes/No	
Choice of Examination Cities (candidates can choose examination cities for JEE (Advanced) only from a single Zone as given in Appendix-3)	Choice 1 As per list given in Appendix-3 Choice 2 Choice 3
JEE (Advanced) is only Pen and Paper based examination	

Photograph: Firmly affix two recent (taken on or after 1.10.2012) high-contrast front-faced passport-size (3x4 cm) photographs of the candidate with gum/other adhesives in the space provided for it in the Confirmation Page. The photographs must be not be pinned or stapled. The photograph must be duly attested by the head of the institution where the candidate is studying/passed class XII or the Gazetted officer in such a way that part of the signature is on the photograph and remaining part of the signature is on the Confirmation Page. Attestation should be done on the bottom part of the photograph so that the photograph is not defaced. The face must cover at least 50% of the total vertical space of the photograph. The photograph must indicate clearly the name of the candidate along with the date of taking the photograph (as shown). The candidate should not use any cap or gogales while taking the photographs. Clear spectacles are allowed. Polaroid photos, photos from mobile phones, laptops etc are not acceptable. Applications of candidates not complying with these instructions or with unclear photograph are liable to be rejected. Candidates may keep 6-8 identical photographs in reserve for use at the time of entrance examination, Counselling and Admission.



Note - Request for change or correction of any information, once given in the Confirmation Page, shall not be entertained under any circumstances. The Board will not be responsible for any consequences arising out of nonacceptance of any correction/addition/deletion in any particular once submitted in the application form whatsoever the reasons may be.

5.3. Additional Information for Candidates for JEE (Advanced) - 2013

Candidates who wish to appear for JEE (Advanced) – 2013 must also give their choices of JEE (Advanced) examination cities.

The candidates who are found eligible for JEE (Advanced) – 2013 will have to again register later on at the JEE (Advanced) website <u>http://jeeadv.iitd.ac.in</u> after the declaration of the JEE (Main) score on or before 13th May 2013.

5.4. Check-List of Items to be Sent to JEE (Main) Secretariat

The duly filled Confirmation Page is to be sent by Registered/Speed Post to JEE (Main) office along with demand draft from any scheduled commercial bank if payment is made by demand draft. Those who have made payment by debit/credit card may have to send only Confirmation Page that carries the details of their online fee transactions.

5.5. Where and How to Send the Confirmation Page

The Confirmation Page is to be printed on A-4 size paper and kept in an A-4 size envelope/proper size envelope.

The completed Confirmation Page must be sent only by registered/speed post to the Executive Director JEE (Main) - 2013 at the address given below.

Executive Director JEE (Main) Secretariat Central Board of Secondary Education, PS-1-2, Institutional Area, I.P.Extn. Patparganj, Delhi-110 092.

Confirmation page sent by the courier/hand delivered will be rejected without any further correspondence.

5.6. Last Date for Receipt of the Confirmation Page

The computer generated Confirmation Page with photographs pasted, address written, signed by the candidate, signed by the parent and counter signed by the Principal/Gazetted Officer must reach the JEE (Main) Secretariat on or before 26th December 2012.

5.7. Proof of Having Sent the Confirmation Page

The candidates are advised to retain the following.

• A photocopy of Confirmation Page carrying the Application No.

- Copy of receipt/confirmation as per the mode of remittance of Examination fee.
- Original receipt of Speed / Registered post.

6. ADMIT CARD FOR JEE (Main) - 2013

The Admit Card can be downloaded from JEE (Main) website from 1st March 2013 onwards. **PRIOR TO DOWNLOADING THE ADMIT CARD, THOSE CANDIDATES WHO DID NOT PROVIDE THE ROLL NUMBER OF THEIR CLASS** 12th/OTHER QUALIFYING EXAMINATIONS WILL BE REQUIRED TO PROVIDE SO. The candidates are advised to download their admit cards from JEE (Main) website only. The Candidates are also advised to regularly see JEE (Main) website for updates. A call center will also be functional on all working days from 1st February 2013 onwards for general facilitation.

7. COMPUTER BASED EXAMINATION FOR PAPER-1 OF JEE (Main) - 2013

7.1. Guidelines to Candidates

- 1. Please check the Admit Card carefully for your Name, Paper, Date of Birth, Gender, Test Center Name, City, State Code of Eligibility and Category. In case of any discrepancy, communicate to JEE (Main) Secretariat immediately for necessary action.
- 2. Candidates are advised to reach the venue at least 1.5 hrs before the examination so as to complete the registration formalities well before the time. Registration desk will be closed 30 minutes prior to the examination. No candidate, under any circumstances, will be allowed to enter the Examination Center after the commencement of the examination.
- 3. No candidate without Admit Card shall be allowed to sit in the Examination by the Center Superintendent.
- 4. Candidate will not be allowed to leave the Examination Hall before the conclusion of the test.
- 5. Candidates must follow the instructions strictly as instructed by the Centre Superintendent/Invigilators.
- 6. The Admit Card is issued provisionally to the candidate subject to his/her satisfying the eligibility conditions.
- 7. Candidates are requested to carry a photo identity proof (School/College ID Card, Passport, Voter ID card, Driving License) to the Examination Center.

- 8. No Candidate will be allowed to carry any baggage inside the Examination Center. Joint Apex Board will not be responsible for any belongings stolen or lost at the premises.
- 9. Smoking and eating is strictly prohibited in the examination room.
- 10. Approach the Center Superintendent/Invigilator in the room for any technical assistance, first aid emergency or any other information during the course of examination.
- 11. For any queries or issues the candidates may contact on toll free Call Centre No. which will be put on JEE (Main) website later on.

7.2. Instructions for Computer Based Examination

- 1. The Computer Based Examination will be conducted as per the following schedule.
 - a. A sample/mock test will be available on JEE (Main) website in the month of Feb/Mar 2013 for practice purpose and to give the candidate look and feel of the Computer Based Examination (CBE).
 - b. Facilitation center will be operational in the month of March for the hands on practice by the candidates in each and every city where online examination will be conducted.
 - c. The details of facilitation centers will be made available on JEE (Main) website in March 2013.
- 2. The test will be of 3 hrs duration
- 3. The test paper will consist questions of Physics, Chemistry & Mathematics and all question will have equal weightage.
- 4. There will be three parts in the question paper consisting of Physics, Chemistry and Mathematics having equal weightages. Each question is allotted 4 (four) marks for each correct response.
- 5. ¹/₄ (one fourth) marks i.e. one mark will be deducted for indicating incorrect response of each question. No deduction from the total score will be made if no response is indicated for a question.
- 6. There is only one correct response for each question out of four responses given.
- 7. No candidate is allowed to carry any textual material, printed or written, bits of papers, pager, mobile phone, any electronic device, etc., except the Admit Card, identity proof and pen inside the examination hall/room. Violation of this will lead to cancellation of candidature.

- 8. All calculations/writing work are to be done in the rough sheet provided only and on completion of the test candidates must hand over the rough sheets to the invigilator on duty in the Room/Hall
- 9. Each candidate must show on demand his/her Admit Card to the Invigilator
- 10.No candidate, without special permission of the Superintendent or Invigilator, should leave his/her seat
- 11. The candidates are governed by all Rules and Regulations of the Board with regard to their conduct in the Examination Hall. All cases of unfair means will be dealt with as per rules.

8. PEN AND PAPER BASED EXAMINATION FOR PAPER-1 AND PAPER-2 OF JEE (Main) – 2013

8.1. Guidelines to Candidates

- 1. The examination rooms/hall will be opened 30 minutes before the commencement of the test. Candidates should take their seats immediately after opening of the examination hall. If the candidates do not report in time, they are likely to miss some of the general instructions to be announced in the Examination Hall.
- 2. The candidate must show, on demand, the Admit Card for admission in the examination room/hall. A candidate who does not possess the Admit Card issued by the Board shall not be permitted for the examination under any circumstances by the Centre Superintendent.
- 3. A seat indicating roll number will be allocated to each candidate. Candidate should find out and occupy their allotted seat only. Any candidate found to have changed room or the seat on his/her own other than allotted, his/her candidature shall be cancelled and no plea would be accepted for it.
- 4. A candidate who comes after the commencement of the examination shall not be permitted to sit in the examination.
- 5. Candidates are not allowed to carry any textual material, Calculators, Docu Pen, Slide Rules, Log Tables, Electronic Watches with facilities of calculator, printed or written material, bits of papers, mobile phone, pager or any other device, except the Admit Card inside the Examination Room/Hall. If any candidate is in possession of any of the above items, his/her candidature will be treated as unfair means and his/her current examination will be cancelled & he/she will also be debarred for future examination(s) & the equipment will be seized.
- 6. For Aptitude Test in Architecture, candidates are advised to bring their own geometry box set, pencils, erasers and colour pencils or crayons.

- 7. No candidate, without the special permission of the Centre Superintendent or the Invigilator concerned, will leave his/her seat or Examination Room until the full duration of the paper. Candidates should not leave the room/hall without handing over their Answer Sheets to the Invigilators on duty.
- 8. Candidates are advised to bring with them a cardboard or a clip board on which nothing should be written, so that they have no difficulty in filling responses in the Answer Sheet even if the tables provided in the examination room/hall do have smooth surface. They should also bring with them their own Ball Point Pens (Black/Blue) of good quality.
- 9. Smoking in the Examination Hall/Room is strictly prohibited.
- 10.Tea, coffee, cold drinks or snacks are not allowed to be taken into the examination rooms during examination hours.
- 11.Ten minutes before the commencement of the paper, each candidate will be given sealed Test Booklet with an Answer Sheet placed inside it.
- 12. Immediately on receipt of the Test Booklet the candidate will fill in the required particulars on the cover page of the Test Booklet with Ball Point Pen only. He/She will not open the Test Booklet until asked to do so by the Invigilator. Do not open/break the seal before the announcement.

8.2. Instructions for Pen and Paper Based Examination

- Five minutes before the commencement of the paper the candidate will be asked to break/open the seal of the Test Booklet. He/She will take out the Answer Sheet carefully. The candidate should check carefully that the Test Booklet Code printed on Side-2 of the Answer Sheet is the same as printed on the Test Booklet. In case of discrepancy, the candidate should immediately report the matter to the Invigilator for replacement of both the Test Booklet and the Answer Sheet.
- 2. Candidate will then write particulars with Blue/Black ball point pen only on both the sides of the Answer Sheet. Use of pencil is strictly prohibited. If one uses the pencil, his/her answer sheet will be rejected and no correspondence will be entertained in this regard. After completing this step, the candidates will wait for the instruction by the invigilator.
- 3. The test will start exactly at the time mentioned in the Admit Card and an announcement to this effect will be made by the invigilator.
- 4. During the examination time, the invigilator will check Admit Card of the candidate to satisfy himself/herself about the identity of each candidate. The

invigilator will also put his/her signatures in the place provided in the Answer Sheet on Side-1.

- 5. Candidate shall bring his/her own Ball Point Pens of good quality. These will not be supplied by the Board.
- 6. A signal will be given at the beginning of the examination and at halftime. A signal will also be given before the closing time when the candidate must stop marking the responses.
- 7. The candidate will check that the Test-booklet contains as many number of pages as are written on the top of the first page of the Test Booklet.
- 8. The candidates must sign twice on the Attendance Sheet at the appropriate place. Firstly, immediately after commencement of the Examination and for the second time while handing over the Answer Sheet to the Invigilator. The candidates are also required to put their left hand thumb impression in the space provided in the Attendance Sheet.

9. CODE OF CONDUCT FOR CANDIDATES DURING JEE (Main) - 2013

Candidates shall maintain perfect silence and attend to their Question Paper only. Any conversation or gesticulation or disturbance in the Examination Room/Hall shall be deemed as misbehaviour. If a candidate is found using unfair means or impersonating, his/her candidature shall be cancelled and he/she will be liable to be debarred for taking examination either permanently or for a specified period according to the nature of offence.

Candidates are not allowed to carry any textual material, Calculators, Docu Pen, Slide Rules, Log Tables, Electronic Watches with facilities of calculator, printed or written material, bits of papers, mobile phone, pager or any other device, except the Admit Card inside the Examination Room/Hall. If any candidate is in possession of any of the above item, his/her candidature will be treated as unfair means and his/her current examination will be cancelled & he/she will also be debarred for future examination(s) & the equipment will be seized.

The candidate shall not remove any page(s) from the Test-Booklet and if he/she is found to have removed any page(s) from his/her Test Booklet, he/she will be presumed to have used unfair means and shall be liable for criminal action.